

Request for Proposal No. HM 2022-02

Harbour Master Contract

Closing Location:

District of Ucluelet Municipal Office
Box 999
200 Main Street
Ucluelet, British Columbia
VOR 3A0

Closing Date and Time:

Each proposal be received by 4:00 pm Pacific Standard Time on April 4, 2022

Contact Person:

Abby Fortune, Director of Parks & Recreation Phone: (250) 266-2097

E-mail: afortune@ucluelet.ca

Contents

1. Sur	mmary of the Requirement	4
1.1	Objective	4
1.2	Scope of the Project	4
1.3	Mandatory Requirements	4
1.4	Negotiable Considerations	5
2. Ad	ministration	5
2.1	Community Background	5
2.2	Headings & Definitions	5
2.3	Not a Tender Call	6
2.4	Intention of the District	7
3. Re	quest for Proposal Process	7
3.1	RFP Schedule	7
3.2	Enquiries	7
3.3	Number of Proposals	7
3.4	Form of Proposal / Alternative Solutions	7
3.5	Closing Date & Location	8
3.6	Irrevocability of Proposals	8
3.7	Late Proposals	8
3.8	Modification of RFP	9
3.9	Evaluation	9
3.10	Rejection of Proposals	9
3.11	Acceptance of Proposal	.10
3.12	Negotiation Delay	.10
3.13	Execution of Contract	.11
3.14	Commencement, Prosecution, and Completion of Work	.11
3.15	Failure or Default of Proponent	.11
4. Ad	ditional Terms & Conditions	.11
4.1	No Obligation to Proceed	.11
4.2	Liability for Errors	.12
4.3	Limitation of Damages	.12
4.4	Use of Request for Proposal	.12
4.5	Cost of Preparation	.12

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Schedule A Scope.......16 Schedule D: Registration of Intent to Submit Form21

Page	3	of	21
i agc	J	Oi	Z I

1. Summary of the Requirement

1.1 Objective

The District desires to retain the services of a qualified contractor to manage its Small Craft Harbour wharves, Inner and Outer boat basins and parking lot, Main Street Dock, 52 Steps Dock (Otter Street), Boat Launch (Seaplane Base Road) (the "Facilities") and related areas located in Ucluelet, British Columbia.

Closing Date: April 4, 2022

1.2 Scope of the Project

The Contractor, through the RFP proposal shall demonstrate to the District that they have the skills, expertise and experience necessary to provide the harbour management services sought by the District in a professional and competent manner.

Proponents with proven experience and expertise in managing a Harbour are invited to submit Proposals setting out how the goals, objectives, and other requirements of this RFP may be best met. The goal is to receive Proposals that meet the mandatory requirements of this RFP, negotiate with the Proponent submitting the preferred Proposal, and enter into a Contract for the execution of deliverables listed in Schedule A, B and C.

1.3 Mandatory Requirements

Working with the Director of Parks and Recreation and reporting to the Harbour Authority the Contractor shall perform the Services for the District as specified in Schedule A, B & C to this Agreement in a competent, diligent and efficient manner, ensuring all safety regulations and procedures are strictly enforced. Additionally, the Contractor shall be responsible for the furtherance of the recommendations set out in the 2022 Harbour Master Plan.

The Contractor shall comply with and be subject to all applicable federal, provincial and municipal enactments. This includes but is not limited to, the Fisheries and Recreational Harbours Act R.S. 1985, c. F-24, and the Marine Transportation Security Act S.C. 1999, c. 40, as amended or replaced from time to time, and all regulations enacted thereto.

The Contractor shall comply with, follow the rules and regulations of, and assume the roles and responsibilities contained within the current Department of Fisheries, Small Craft Harbours Harbour Authority Manual/Governance.

The Contractor shall maintain and hold a valid business license issued by the District of Ucluelet. The Contractor shall be responsible for any and all fees and charges for the License.

1.4 Negotiable Considerations

The following are negotiable considerations that will be part of the evaluation process.

Closing Date: April 4, 2022

- Software program used for Harbour records, accounts, invoices, receipts and vouchers of all expenses incurred;
- Form of report and retention of data;
- Experience of the firm, staff and subcontractors; and,
- References

2. Administration

2.1 Community Background

Incorporated in 1953, the District of Ucluelet is located on the narrow Ucluth Peninsula between Barkley Sound and the exposed Pacific Ocean, Ucluelet's name ("safe harbour" in the Nuu-chah-nulth language) points to the key position of the town in this spectacular landscape. Poised on the edge of the Pacific, the community draws its energy from the interplay of the contrasting and complementary qualities of the landscape and the people.

Currently, the District has a population of approximately 2,000 people. The nearest major city is Nanaimo, which is approximately 183 km east of Ucluelet. Ucluelet is a diverse, active, and welcoming community which has been shaped over time by the energy of the place and the people drawn here to the natural setting of the rugged outer west coast of Vancouver Island.

2.2 Headings & Definitions

Headings and titles used in this RFP are for convenience only and are not explanatory of the clauses with which they appear.

The following terms will apply to this Request for Proposal and any subsequent Contract. Submission of a Proposal in response to this Request for Proposal indicates acceptance of all the following terms:

- "Best Value" means the value placed upon quality, service, past performance, and price.
- "Contract" means the written agreement resulting from this Request for Proposal executed by the District of Ucluelet and the Successful Proponent.
- "District" means the District of Ucluelet.
- "Must", "Shall", "Will", "Mandatory" or "Required" means a requirement that must be met in order for a Proposal to receive consideration.
- "**Proposal**" shall mean the Proponent's submission in response to this RFP.

- "Proponent" means a party that submits, or intends to submit, a Proposal in response to this RFP.
- "RFP" means this Request for Proposal.
- "Request for Proposal" (RFP) includes the documents listed in the index of this Request for Proposal and any modifications thereof or additions thereto incorporated by addenda before the Closing Deadline.
- "Should", "Ask", or "Desirable" means a requirement having a degree of importance to the objectives of the Request for Proposal.
- "Subcontractor" includes, inter alia, a person, firm or corporation having a contract with the Successful Proponent for the execution of a part or parts or furnishing to the Successful Proponent materials and/or equipment called for in the RFP.
- "Successful Proponent" means the Proponent submitting the most advantageous RFP as determined by the District.
- "Work" means any labour, duty and/or efforts to accomplish the purpose of this project

2.3 Not a Tender Call

This RFP is not a tender call, and the submission of any response to this RFP does not create a tender process. This RFP is not an invitation for an offer to contract, and it is not an offer to contract made by the District. Further to this point, Proposals will not be opened in public.

The District will not have any legal duty or obligation to anyone in connection with this RFP except under a performance Contract, if any, created by the parties according to the process described in this RFP. The District is under no obligation to enter into any contract or other agreement with anyone in connection with this RFP and proposals received.

This RFP is a mere invitation to treat: it is a solicitation to vendors to come forward with competing offers, and/or to compete for an opportunity to negotiate a Contract. This RFP itself does not constitute an offer in relation to the formation of any contract, including any bid contract, preliminary contract, collateral contract, or "contract A". No agreement of any kind (express or implied), including any contract A or implied terms (including any implied duty of fairness), should result upon submission of a proposal (whether or not such proposal is Non-Compliant). Nevertheless, proposals submitted to the District containing signature pages signed by Proponents in relation to the formation of a performance Contract are offers capable of acceptance by the District (whether or not the proposal is Non-Compliant), with or without negotiations, in order to form one or more performance Contracts.

The sole remedy for any Proponent who finds this, or other terms and conditions outlined in this RFP, unacceptable is to refrain from submitting a Proposal.

2.4 Intention of the District

The intention of the District is to evaluate Proponent Proposals for the purpose of identifying the most advantageous Proposal. The District may then enter into negotiation with the Successful Proponent for the purposes of entering into a Contract.

Closing Date: April 4, 2022

3. Request for Proposal Process

3.1 RFP Schedule

The following is the proposed Schedule for the selection process:

RFP Issued
 RFP Response Deadline
 RFP Response Evaluation
 Negotiation with Preferred Proponent
 April 2022
 April 2022
 April 2022
 Award Contract

3.2 Enquiries

All enquiries to this Request for Proposal are to be directed, by e-mail, to the following contact person.

Abby Fortune, Director of Parks & Recreation

Phone: (250) 266-0297

E-mail: afortune@ucluelet.ca

Information obtained from any other source is not official and should not be relied upon. Enquiries and responses will be recorded and may be distributed to all Proponents at the District of Ucluelet's option. Questions may not be accepted after March 28, 2022.

3.3 Number of Proposals

Your Proposal package may be submitted electronically in PDF format to <u>afortune@ucluelet.ca</u> prior to the closing date. Alternatively, Proponents must provide one (1) hard copy to the attention of Abby Fortune. Such hard copy shall be in a sealed envelope, clearly marked with the name and address of the Proponent and the name of the RFP ("RFP No. HM 2022-02: Harbour Master Contract"). Hard copies must be received at the closing location (S. 3.5) prior to the closing time/date.

3.4 Form of Proposal / Alternative Solutions

The Proposal must address the requirements, deliverables, contract fees, and evaluation criteria outlined herein. If alternative Proposals or solutions are being provided, Proponents must clearly delineate the details of each Proposal in their submission. Depending on the complexity of the alternative solution, this may be best accomplished by submitting each alternative as a separate Proposal.

All Proposals must be signed by the person(s) authorized to sign on behalf of the Proponent and to bind the Proponent to statements made in response to this Request for Proposal.

Closing Date: April 4, 2022

3.5 Closing Date & Location

Proposals must be received no later than 4:00 pm (PST), April 4, 2022 (the "Closing Deadline"), at the following address:

District of Ucluelet – Municipal Office Box 999 200 Main Street Ucluelet, BC VOR 3A0

Please keep in mind that courier services such as DHL, Purolator or Canada Post generally cannot provide one day delivery service to Ucluelet.

3.6 Irrevocability of Proposals

Prior to the time and date of the Request for Proposal Closing Deadline, any Proponent may withdraw or change their proposal without penalty or forfeiture, by giving notice in writing to:

Abby Fortune, Director of Parks & Recreation District of Ucluelet Box 999 200 Main Street Ucluelet, BC VOR 3A0

Or email to:

afortune@ucluelet.ca

Upon the closing deadline, all Proposals become irrevocable, and no words or comments may be added to, or removed from, the Proposal unless requested by the District for purposes of clarification. By submission of a Proposal, the Proponent agrees that should its Proposal be deemed successful and accepted as per the Proposal, the Proponent will enter into a Contract with the District. This irrevocability is only valid for a period of sixty (60) days after the Closing Deadline.

3.7 Late Proposals

Proposals received after the final date and time for receipt of Proposals will be considered as "Late Proposals". Late Proposals will not be accepted and will be returned unopened to the sender.

3.8 Modification of RFP

The District reserves the right to modify the terms of the Request for Proposal at any time at its sole discretion. The District will endeavour to distribute all modifications to Proponents that register. To register, please submit the Registration of Intent to Submit Form (attached hereto as Schedule D) to Abby Fortune by email at afortune@ucluelet.ca.

Closing Date: April 4, 2022

Modifications to the RFP will be made in the form of written addenda or re-issued documents. All addenda shall be considered integral to the RFP and having the same effect as if part of the original RFP. It is the Proponent's responsibility to ensure that they have all modifications. The modifications will be made available on the District website (www.Ucluelet.ca). Proposals should include acknowledgement of receipt of all addenda.

3.9 Evaluation

Evaluation of Proposals may be by an Evaluation Committee formed by the District. The District may choose to create a short list of qualified Proponents and conduct interviews to determine the Successful Proponent. The District also reserves the right to obtain additional information from the Proponents to clarify the information in their submission and to assist in making evaluations. If specifications require significant modification, all Proponents shall have the opportunity to adjust their Proposals or re-submit altogether, as determined by the District.

The Proponent's Proposals will be evaluated using the following guidelines.

- Written Presentation Quality (i.e., clear, concise, and demonstrating an understanding of the RFP requirements) 5%
- Workplan 20%
- Contractor Experience, Knowledge, Proposed Personnel/Subcontractor Qualifications (if applicable), – 40%
- Contractor Cost (Commission negotiated) 20%
- Added Value (as outlined in proposal) 15%

All evaluation criteria and other evaluation related processes in this document are non-binding guidelines only, notwithstanding any obligatory language used herein. Thus, the evaluation process under this RFP is structured to be flexible and forgiving. This flexible and forgiving process is a fair and transparent one, because Proponents are made aware of the nature of the process in advance, and because all Proponents stand to benefit from its flexible and forgiving nature from the outset. Competition and value-for-money are enhanced because attractive Proposals need not be disqualified.

3.10 Rejection of Proposals

The District reserves the right to reject, at the District's sole discretion, any or all Proposals, without limiting the foregoing, any Proposal which:

• is incomplete, obscure, irregular, or unrealistic;

- has non-authorized erasures or corrections in the Proposal or any schedule thereto;
- omits or fails to include any one or more items in the proposal for which a price is required;

Closing Date: April 4, 2022

- fails to complete the information required by the RFP to be furnished with a Proposal or fails to complete the information required whether the same purports to be completed or not;
- are nonconforming because they do not contain the context or form required by this RFP or for failure to comply with the process for submission set out in this RFP;
- are unsigned, incomplete, conditional, illegible, unbalanced, obscure or that contain additions not called for, reservations, erasures, alteration, or irregularities of any kind may be rejected;
- exceed the cost expectations of the District and/or does not meet the terms and conditions contained in the RFP.

Further, a Proposal may be rejected based on the Proponents past performance, financial capabilities, completion schedule, and non-compliance with Federal, Provincial and Municipal legislation.

3.11 Acceptance of Proposal

The District of Ucluelet shall not be obligated in any manner to any Proponent whatsoever until a Contract has been duly executed with a Proponent.

At its sole discretion, the District reserves the right to accept or reject all or part of the Proposal, however, the District is not precluded from negotiating with the Successful Proponent to modify its Proposal to best suit the needs of the District. The District reserves the right to waive any minor informalities, irregularities, or technicalities, and to accept the offer deemed most favourable to the District. The District also reserves the right to accept a non-compliant Proposal, despite any failure to comply with a mandatory term of this RFP.

The acceptance of a Proposal shall be made only by notice in writing and will be addressed to the Successful Proponent at the address given in their submission. The amount of the Proposal will be made public if a Contract is awarded.

3.12 Negotiation Delay

If a written Contract cannot be negotiated within thirty (30) days of notification of the Successful Proponent, the District may, at its sole discretion at any time, thereafter, terminate negotiations with that Proponent and either negotiate a Contract with the next qualified Proponent or choose to terminate the RFP process and not enter into a Contract with any of the Proponents.

3.13 Execution of Contract

If the offer contained in a Proposal is accepted, upon being advised that the Contract is available, the Proponent will obtain the Contract and will execute and identify the documents in a form and manner acceptable to the District and will deliver the same within 14 days from the time when the same are available or are delivered or mailed to the Proponent.

Closing Date: April 4, 2022

The RFP, accepted submission, and District contract documents represent the entire Contract between the District and the Successful Proponent and supersede all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements either written or oral. The Contract may be amended only by written instrument agreed and executed by the Successful Proponent and the District.

3.14 Commencement, Prosecution, and Completion of Work

If awarded the Contract, the Proponent shall supply the goods and or services on the date set out in the Contract Documents and shall complete the Contract within the time specified in the Contract Documents.

3.15 Failure or Default of Proponent

If the Proponent, for any reason whatsoever, fails or defaults in respect of any matter or thing that is an obligation of the Proponent under the terms of this RFP, the District may, at its option, consider the Proponent has abandoned the offer made or Contract. In doing so, any prior acceptance of the offer or Contract by the District shall be null and void, and the District shall be free to select an alternate solution of its choosing.

4. Additional Terms & Conditions

The following terms and conditions will apply to this RFP and to any subsequent Contract. Submission of a Proposal in response to this RFP indicates acceptance of all the following.

4.1 No Obligation to Proceed

Though the District fully intends at this time to proceed through the RFP, the District is under no obligation to award a contract or to proceed to any other stage and reserves the right to terminate the Request for Proposal process at any time, and to withdraw from discussions with all or any of the Proponents who have responded.

The receipt by the District of any information (including any submissions, ideas, plans, drawings, models, or other materials communicated or exhibited by any intended Proponent, or on its behalf) shall not impose any obligations on the District. There is no guarantee by the District, its officers, employers, or managers, that the process initiated by the issuance of this RFP will continue, or that this RFP process or any RFP process will result in a contract with the District for the purchase of the equipment, service or project.

4.2 Liability for Errors

While the District has used considerable efforts to ensure an accurate representation of the information in this Request for Proposal, the information contained in the Request for Proposal is supplied solely as a guideline for Proponents. The information is not guaranteed or warranted to be accurate by the District, nor is it necessarily comprehensive or exhaustive. Nothing in this Request for Proposal is intended to relieve Proponents from performing their own due diligence and forming their own opinions and conclusions with respect to the matters addressed in this Request for Proposal.

Closing Date: April 4, 2022

4.3 Limitation of Damages

By submitting a Proposal, a Proponent agrees that it will not claim damages for whatever reason relating to the RFP by reason of submitting a Proposal, in respect of the competitive process, or in respect of any breach of any implied duty of fairness, including but not limited to any costs incurred by the Proponent in preparing its Proposal. By submitting a Proposal, the Proponent waives any and all such claims.

4.4 Use of Request for Proposal

This document, or any portion thereof, may not be used for any purpose other than the submission of Proposals. All designs, drawings, concept drawings, specifications, digital, hard copies, web pages, internet pages, maps and plans commissioned or produced by the District of Ucluelet, shall remain the property of the District of Ucluelet.

4.5 Cost of Preparation

Any cost incurred by the Proponent in the preparation of this Proposal will be borne solely by the Proponent.

4.6 Currency

Prices quoted are to be in Canadian dollars.

4.7 Precedence

In the case of any inconsistency or conflict between the provisions of the RFP, the provisions of such documents and addenda thereto will take precedence in governing in the following order: (1) Addenda; (2) RFP; (3) Executed Proposal Submittal Form; (4) all other documents.

4.8 Confidentiality

The District will endeavour to keep all Proposals confidential. The material contained in the Successful Proposal will be incorporated in a Contract and information that is considered sensitive and/or proprietary shall be identified as such by the Proponent. Technical or commercial information included in the Contract shall not be released if the District deems such releases inappropriate, subject to the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act.

4.9 No Collusion

Except as otherwise specified or as arising by reason of the provision of the Contract, no person whether natural, or body corporate, other than the Proponent has or will have any interest or share in this Proposal or in the proposed Contract that may be completed in respect thereof. There is no collusion or arrangement between the Proponent and any other actual or prospective Proponents in connection with Proposals submitted for this project and the Proponent has no knowledge of the contents of other Proposals and has made no comparison of figures or agreement or arrangement, express or implied, with any other party in connection with the making of the Proposal.

Closing Date: April 4, 2022

4.10 Agreement

The Successful Proponent agrees that by submitting a Proposal the Proponent agrees to all the terms and conditions of this Request for Proposal will form part of the Contract. Proponents who have obtained the Request for Proposal must not alter any portion of the document, except for adding information requested. To do so will invalidate the Proposal.

4.11 Sub-Contracting

Using a Subcontractor (who must be clearly identified in the Proposal) is acceptable. This includes a joint submission by two Proponents having no formal corporate links. However, in this case, one of these Proponents must be prepared to take overall responsibility for successful interconnection of the two product or service lines and this must be defined in the Proposal.

Subcontracting to any firm or individual, whose current or past corporate or other interests may, in the District's opinion, give rise to a conflict of interest in connection with this project will not be permitted. This includes, but is not limited to, any firm or individual involved in the preparation of this Proposal.

4.12 Business Licence, Insurance & Indemnity

The Successful Proponent must indemnify the District and their employees, officers, directors and agents (each an "Indemnified Person") against all claims, actions, proceedings, damages, losses, costs, expenses and liabilities of any kind incurred that an Indemnified Person may sustain, incur, suffer or be put to, either before or after this Contract ends, which are based upon, arise out of or occur, directly or indirectly, by reason of, any act or omission by you or by any of your agents, employees, officers, directors, or Successful Proponents in providing the Services, except liability arising out of any independent negligent act by the District. The Contractor accepts responsibility for the acts and omissions of all Subcontractors it may engage in rendering the service on the project.

The successful Proponent and any subcontracting firm or individual shall obtain and maintain a District of Ucluelet business licence through the term of the Contract, at its own expense and cost.

Closing Date: April 4, 2022 Request for Proposal No. HM 2022-02

As a minimum, the successful Proponent shall procure and maintain through the term of the Contract, at its own expense and cost, the following insurance policies:

- a) The Contractor will obtain, maintain and pay for, during the Term, comprehensive General Liability and property Damage insurance for not less than Five Million (\$5,000,000.00) Dollars, with the District added as an additional named insured and shall provide annual proof of same.
- b) Confirmation of Automobile Liability Insurance on all vehicles owned, operated, or licensed in the name of the Proponent's company as covered under own insurance.
- c) Proof of WorkSafe BC registration in the form of a WorkSafe BC Certificate of Compliance letter.

Safety 4.13

The Successful Proponent will be designated as the Prime Contractor for this project, assuming all health and safety obligations and requirements. All equipment offered must meet Canadian Federal and British Columbia Provincial safety regulations.

4.14 **Legal Information**

The law applicable to this RFP shall be the law in effect in the Province of British Columbia. Except for an appeal from a British Columbia Court to the Supreme Court of Canada, no action in respect to this RFP shall be brought or maintained in any court other than in a court of the appropriate jurisdiction of the Province of British Columbia.

In carrying out its obligations hereunder, the Proponent shall familiarize itself and comply with all applicable laws, bylaws, regulations, ordinances, codes, specifications, and requirements of all regulatory authorities, and shall obtain all necessary licenses, permits, and registrations as may be required by law. Where there are two or more laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or codes applicable to the services, the more restrictive shall apply.

All references in the RFP to statutes and regulations thereto and District bylaws shall be deemed to be the most recent amendments thereto or replacements thereof.

All equipment, goods and workmanship must conform to all Laws and Standards necessary for use in Canada and the Province of British Columbia.

The Successful Proponent shall hold and save the District, its officers, agents, servants, and employees, harmless from liability of any nature or kind, including costs and expenses for or on account of any copyrighted or uncopyrighted composition, secret or other process, patented or unpatented invention, articles or appliance manufactured or used in the performance of the Contract, and/or used or to be used by the District before or after completion of the Work unless otherwise stipulated in this contract, and if the Supplier shall fail to save harmless the District, its officers, agents, servants, or employees in manner aforesaid, any money collected from the District, its

Closing Date: April 4, 2022

officers, agents, servants, or employees by reason of such failure shall be charged to the Supplier.

Schedule A Scope

1. The District desires to retain the services of a contractor to manage its current facilities, Small Craft Harbour wharves, Inner and Outer boat basins and parking lot, Main Street Dock, 52 Steps Dock (Otter Street), Boat Launch (Seaplane Base Road) (the "Facilities") and related areas located in Ucluelet, British Columbia.

- 2. The Harbour Master is expected to carry out his or her duties in a manner that reflects Ucluelet as not only a working community but a resort municipality.
- 3. The Harbour Master is expected to communicate with the Harbour Authority and Director of Parks & Recreation on any projects carried out to determine deliverables and project outcomes.
- 4. Supply coverage by him/herself or qualified staff on harbour related duties.
- 5. Undertake all minor maintenance and ensure that the facilities are in an orderly, safe and clean condition.
- 6. Remit all monies collected for services, sales, payments on account, parking, etc. to the District Finance Department as determined.
- 7. Term is intended to be for a period of 5 years.
- 8. Proponents are required to submit a fee structure for annual compensation.

Schedule B Expectations

1. The Harbour Master is expected to carry out his or her duties in a manner that reflects Ucluelet as not only a working community but a resort municipality.

- 2. The Harbour Master is expected to communicate with the Harbour Authority and Director of Parks & Recreation on any projects carried out to determine deliverables and project outcomes. The Harbour Master must provide and submit approval for any projects to the Harbour Authority prior to undertaking any works.
- 3. The Harbour Master will work with the Director of Parks and Recreation and the Harbour Authority to determine the priorities and projects as laid out in the Harbour Master Plan.
 - Assessing District owned or managed harbour infrastructure, including recommendations and guidance for ongoing maintenance and/or capital improvements, and fostering an economically and socially vibrant community.
 - Supporting the twin pillars of the local economy harbour-related industries and tourism in alignment with the community's vision, goals and objectives.
 - Reflecting the priorities of the District, DFO, partners, stakeholders, user groups and the broader community through the creation of a more effective harbourfront that meets commercial, recreational, industrial, and Federal interests, while maintaining and enhancing the harbours' character and charm.

Schedule C Duties

GENERAL DUTIES

 Operate, manage and supervise the Small Craft Harbour's Inner and Outer Basins, parking lot, Main Street Dock, 52 Steps Dock, Boat Launch (Seaplane Base Road) and associated facilities in a safe and efficient manner. Management duties to include but are not limited to:

- a. Daily supervision
- b. Garbage disposal
- c. Waste oil disposal
- d. Monitoring of utilities, both electrical and water
- e. Parking and vehicular traffic
- f. Rules of conduct
- g. Vessel records
- 2. Supply coverage by qualified staff on harbour related duties as a minimum for the following times:
 - a. For a minimum of twenty-eight (28) hours per week for the periods January to April inclusively and October to December inclusively; and
 - b. For a minimum of seventy (70) hours per week for the periods May through September inclusively. Operating hours and days to be mutually agreed upon.
 - c. The hours of work should be scheduled and posted by the Harbour Manager in order to best serve the public and to maximize revenues.
 - d. If at any time, and at the sole determination of the Harbour Authority, the management and maintenance of the facilities are considered to be unsatisfactory due to inadequate staff coverage, the Harbour Manger shall immediately address this through the hiring of additional support.
- 3. If at any time, and at the sole determination of the Harbour Authority, the maintenance or condition of the facilities are considered to be unsatisfactory or potentially dangerous due to any reason, the Contractor expressly agrees and covenants to the District that the costs incurred by the District to remedy the situation shall then constitute a debt owed by the Contractor to the District that may be collected by the District in any manner permitted by law including, but not limited to, offsetting incurred costs against the Fee established by this Agreement.
- 4. Assume responsibilities of a Wharf Manager as outlined in the Small Craft Harbour's Operational Manual.

- Provide a monthly report using a format agreed to by the Director of Parks & Recreation indicating hours of operation, boat counts, and operational highlights.
- 6. Conduct and provide a weekly safety report for all Facilities, outlining dangerous areas (i.e., snow, ice, rotting planks, etc.) and steps taken (i.e., salting, sanding, replacing, etc.) to remedy same.

Closing Date: April 4, 2022

- Report to the Director of Parks & Recreation any capital or major maintenance works required to be completed including cost estimates to complete such works.
- 8. Complete fiscal management responsibilities for the operation of the facilities as deemed necessary by the District.
- 9. Attend Council/Harbour Authority meetings, Harbour Advisory Commission meetings and other meetings upon request.

OPERATIONAL DUTIES

- 1. Undertake all minor maintenance and ensure that the facilities are in an orderly and clean condition. Such maintenance will include painting, clean-up, minor hand tool repairs and general repairs to the Facilities.
- 2. Undertake weekly safety inspections, and record results of same, for all Facilities.
- 3. Enforce parking lot, boat launch, live-aboard and business license regulations as per posted signs and bylaws at the Harbour parking lots and other associated facilities.
- 4. Ensure that the planters, pathways, grass and general upkeep of the facilities including the parking lot and boat launch are well maintained i.e. free of refuse, clutter, grass trimmed and pathways upkept.
- 5. Ensure the washrooms are maintained to a clean and healthy standard. Please outline schedule and cleaning expectation for low and high season in terms of frequency and work being carried out.
- 6. Paint, as required, or directed by the Harbour Authority, handrails, speed bumps, office, washroom, laundry facilities, loading zone, indicators, etc. and ensure appropriate signage is posted around The Facilities.
- 7. Maintain office furniture, equipment, tools and other equipment (radio, etc.) in good working order and conditions, subject to normal wear and tear. Maintain inventory of supplies and materials at a reasonable level to carry out his/her duties.

FINANCIAL DUTIES

1. Submit, by the 15th day of each month, to the Chief Financial Officer or designate, a Contractor's Report indicating the following:

Closing Date: April 4, 2022

- a) Monthly cash receipts
- b) Monthly billings
- c) Daily reconciliation of point-of-sale terminal
- d) Petty cash reconciliation, if applicable
- e) Such other information as may be requested from time to time.
- 2. Remit all monies collected for services, sales, payments on account, parking, etc. to the District's bank or the Finance Department on a daily basis, or as instructed by the Chief Financial Officer.
- 3. All District of Ucluelet expenses are to be approved as per the budget adopted by the Harbour Authority annually.

RISK MANAGEMENT

 Refer to the Director of Parks & Recreation, CAO or designate, within twenty-four (24) hours of the Manager becoming aware of an incident, all legal matters with details, names and date of any incident or act that might reasonably lead to an insurance claim or litigation.

Schedule D: Registration of Intent to Submit Form

The District reserves the right to modify the terms of the Request for Proposal at any time at its sole discretion. The District will endeavour to distribute all modifications to proponents that register. To register, please submit the Registration of Intent to Submit Form to Abby Fortune by email at afortune@ucluelet.ca.

roposal for: Harbour Master Contract	
Company Name:	
Nailing Address:	
Contact Name:	
tle/Position:	
hone:	
mail:	
ate:	